7106 W Will D Alton Lane, Suite 103 Spokane, WA 99224

December 10, 2020 Board Meeting / 7:30 — 9:30 AM
Agenda for the Board Meeting of the S3R3 Solutions Board of Directors

As per the Governor’s Proclamation, this meeting will be held using an online meeting service.
Instructions on how to join the call are as follows:

Join Zoom Meeting
https://zoom.us/j/94956666384?pwd=ZnNucGltSkpKcCI9KTytMazNCcDR2Zz09
Meeting ID: 949 5666 6384
Passcode: 096416
For a complete packet of materials please go to S3R3Solutions.com

_—— e e ,e—————— - ———————————a=—
Welcome and Introductions

Public Comment/Courtesy of the Floor

Action Items

e Action Item No. 01: Approval of Minutes for the November 12, 2020 Board Meeting and Financials
for period November 1-30, 2020.

Action Item No. 02: Amendment No. 2 to the Sublease with the West Plains Chamber of Commerce
Action Item No. 03: Adoption of 2021 Budget

Action Item No. 04: Adoption of 2021 Strategic Plan

Action Item No. 05: Resolution 2020-01 Concerning Contract Expenditures

Project Updates, Presentations and Briefings

e Project Updates
=  Air Cargo Warehouse (Ground Lease & Financing)
=  The West Plains Connection TIB Grant
= Waest Plains Transportation
= Wetland Mitigation Bank
= Stormwater Study
=  Fiber — CERB Grant

Other Business

e Unfinished Business
e New Business

Board Member Items

Executive Session

An Executive Session may be called during the meeting. The purpose must be announced and is limited by
RCW 42.30.110. Examples include: (1) to discuss with legal counsel litigation, potential litigation and/or legal
risks (RCW 42.30.110(1)(i)); (2) to consider the acquisition of real estate by lease or purchase when public
knowledge regarding such consideration would cause a likelihood of increased price (RCW 42.30.110(1)(b));
and (3) to consider the minimum price at which real estate will be offered for sale or lease when public
knowledge regarding such consideration would cause a likelihood of decreased price (final action selling or
leasing public property shall be taken in a meeting open to the public)(RCW 42.30.110(1)(c)).

Adjourn



Action Item No: 121020-01 Board Meeting Date: December 10, 2020
Consent Agenda

Subject: Approval of Minutes
Approval of Financials

Background:
November 12, 2020 Board Meeting Minutes and Financials for period November 1 -30, 2020.
Recommendation:

Recommendation is for the S3R3 Solutions board to approve the meeting minutes for the Regular
Board Meeting held on November 12, 2020 and Financials for period November 1-30, 2020

Submitted By:

Todd M Coleman, Executive Director

e  —————————————— ___ _ ______—  ——  — ————— —  ————— —— ————————

Date Action Taken:

Motion By:

Seconded By:

Action Taken: (Approved) (Rejected) (Deferred to: )

Approved as modified:




November 12, 2020
7:30 — 9:30 AM, scheduled time

M i n UteS = Regu I a I" M eeti ng (held via teleconference due to Governor’s Proclamation 20-28)

Attendance

S3R3 Solutions Members present via teleconference: Breean Beggs, Greg Birchell, William Butler, Al French, Gerry Gemmill,
Larry Krauter, Scott Simmons

S3R3 Solutions Members absent: None

S3R3 Solutions Staff physically present: Todd Coleman; Executive Director, Sueann Herkel; Executive Assistant

S3R3 Solutions Staff present via teleconference: Taudd Hume; Legal Counsel

S3R3 Solutions Staff absent: None

Guests present: None

Guests present via teleconference: Barry Baker, Bob Cross, Paul Mueller, Galen Ribellia, Gary Schimmels, Mike Stancart

Meeting called to order 7:30 AM

Welcome and Introductions:
Board Chair Al French conducted roll call of Board, quorum present.

Public Comment/Courtesy of the Floor:
No Public Comments due to Governor’s Proclamation.

Action Items Number 1-Consent Agenda

Board Chair Al French requested comment on Consent Agenda Action Items which included Minutes for the October 8, 2020
Regular Board Meeting and October 1 — 31, 2020 Financials. Hearing none, he called for a motion for approval of all items as
presented in the Consent Agenda. Board Vice Chair Bill Butler motioned for approval, Board Member Gerry Gemmill seconded,
motion passed unanimously.

Project Updates, Presentations and Briefings:

1. Barry Baker of Baker Construction presented to the Board his and his associates’ (to include property owners and
development groups) request that the current boundaries of the PDA be expanded to include 94 acres of northwest of the
Medical Lake Interchange. The property is zone General Commercial and is in the Urban Growth Boundary. The concept is
to build a “Gateway to Spokane” to include retail, sit-down restaurants, fast food restaurants, office space, light industrial
space, hospitality and a truck stop. The benefits for the project to be in the PDA would include the marketing partnership,
revenue generation to the PDA, positive economic impact and in city rates for water and sewer. Board Chair Al French
requested that Mr. Baker complete an application with S3R3 Solutions so it may be presented to the City and County. The
concept is generally supported by the Board, however some concerns raised included the property is located within the TCA
1881 TIF, the property would need to be added into the City’s Retail Service Area and General Facilities Charge waivers are
negatively impacting the City’s ability to plan and construct infrastructure to support development in the West Plains.

From this conversation another began concerning an overall strategic plan for expansion over the next five to ten years. That
plan, as inclusive as possible, can then be presented to the City and County.

2. Executive Director Todd Coleman briefed that the Draft Strategic Plan has been revised based on comments from the October
8, 2020 Board Meeting and will be presented for adoption in the December 2020 Board Meeting along with the 2021 Draft
Budget.

3. Executive Director Todd Coleman reported there are several options regarding financing for an air cargo warehouse project.

It is likely to take 45 to 60 days to complete the financing and bring the design/build team on board. Documents will likely
be submitted for approvals to the Board January 2021.

Page 1 of 2




4. Regarding West Plains Transportation, Board Chair Al French advised that Albert Tripp (City Manager for Airway Heights),
Todd Coleman, Larry Krauter and himself are in the process of developing a timeline and map for projects three to ten years
out for Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT). WSDOT will respond with a transportation plan to meet
the needs of the West Plains.

5. Executive Director Todd Coleman briefed that the current sublease S3R3 Solutions has with the West Plains Chamber of
Commerce expires at the end of 2020. Mr. Coleman’s recommends that the lease be continued however be altered to
include only the back-office space and sharing of the Conference Room. Rent will be adjusted accordingly.

Other Business:
1. Unfinished Business
Executive Director Todd Coleman reported that the 6"/10%/12t" Corridor Improvement Project has been submitted for a
Transportation Improvement Board grant. The project benefits include 3,300+ jobs, $132 million in annual wages,
development values of $1.4 billion and $15.5 million in property taxes annually.

2. New Business
None

Board Member Items:
None

Executive Session:
None

At 8:43 AM the November 12, 2020 Meeting was adjourned.

Page 2 of 2



West Plains Airport Area PDA

BALANCE SHEET DETAIL
As of November 30, 2020

DATE NAME MEMO/DESCRIPTION DEBIT CREDIT AMOUNT BALANCE
ASSETS
1111000 BUSINESS CHECKING (6532)
Beginning 37,499.53
Balance
11/02/2020 WA Labor & Industries Tax Payment for Period: 07/01/2020-09/30/2020 $100.80 -100.80 37,398.73
11/02/2020  O'Donnells Lunch meeting with Chad Coles of the County - October 30, 2020 - O’'Donnells - $22.71 -22.71 37,376.02
11/02/2020 Credit against incorrect billing by L&l $100.80 100.80 37,476.82
11/02/2020 Workers Compensation for L&| (Employer) $90.92 -90.82 37,386.00
11/02/2020 Ptera Office phone and internet connection for November 2020 - November 2020 $309.00  -309.00 37,077.00
11/04/2020  Mountain Dog Sign Board & Project Photos & Panel update - Invoice 3944 $1,949.50 -1,949.50 35,127.50
Company
11/04/2020  Kalico Kitchen Meeting between ED and Board Member Gerry Gemmill - November 2020 $16.10 -16.10 35,111.40
11/04/2020  West Plains Chamber of Rent/Utility Payment - November 2020 $650,00 650.00 35,761.40
Commerce
11/04/2020  Anastasi Moore & Martin ~ Accounting Services - august and September 2020 - Invoices 99033 and 99443 $178.25 -178.25 35,583.15
11/05/2020  QuickBooks Team Monthly fee for payroll processing - November 6, 2020 - QuickBooks $43.56 -43.56 35,539.59
11/05/2020 Todd Colemnan Pay Period: 10/16/2020-10/31/2020 $4,275.22 -4,275.22 31,264.37
11/05/2020  Sueann K. Herkel Pay Period: 10/16/2020-10/31/2020 $1,679.62 -1,679.62 29,584.75
11/05/2020 Todd Coleman Pay Period: 10/16/2020-10/31/2020 $1,500.00 -1,500.00 28,084.75
11/05/2020 Subway Business luncheon ED Bill Butler/Greg Birchell - November 5, 2020 Subway - $30.00 -30.00 28,054.75
11/06/2020  City of Spokane* 6th/10th/12th - City of Spokane - payment for 6/10/12 Inv 05 - November 2020 $1,458.74 1,458.74 29,513.49
11/09/2020 WA Employment Security  Refund of overpayment of SUTA for 2018, 2019 and 2020. Accounting firm requested it be $3,265.62 3,265.62 32,779.11
Department charged to two different lines - November 2020
11/09/2020 IRS Tax Payment for Period: 10/01/2020-10/31/2020 $3,754.58 -3,754.58 29,024.53
11/13/2020 MRSC Rosters MRSC - Yearly fee for membership - November 2020 $135.00 -135.00 28,889.53
11/13/2020  Association of Washington AWC - health care coverage for November 2020 $1,936.95 -1,936.95 26,952,58
Cities
11/13/2020  Amazon Office supplies to include file folders $110.59  -110.59 26,841.99
11/13/2020 Transfer of funds from savings to cover operational expenses - November 13, 2020 $10,000.00 10,000.00 36,841.99
11/17/2020  Greater Spokane Inc. GSI - Annual Economic Forecast - November 2020 $40.00 -40.00 36,801.99
11/20/2020 Todd Coleman Pay Period: 11/01/2020-11/15/2020 $1,500.00 -1,500.00 35,301.99
11/20/2020 Todd Coleman Pay Period: 11/01/2020-11/15/2020 $4,275.22 -4,275.22 31,026.77
11/20/2020 Washington DRS PERS for payroll period 1 - November 2020 $1,896.95 -1,89695 29,129.82
11/20/2020  Sueann K. Herkel Pay Period: 11/01/2020-11/15/2020 $1,692.40 -1,692.40 27,437.42
Total for 1111000 BUSINESS CHECKING (6532) $-
10,062.11
1111001 Business Savings (0374)
Beginning 86,354.86
Balance
11/13/2020 Funds transferred to cover operational expenses - November 13, 2020 $10,000.00 - 76,354.86
10,000.00
Total for 1111001 Business Savings (0374) $-
10,000.00
1114000 Spokane County investment Pool
Beginning 1,588,683.09
Balance
Total tor 1114000 Spokane County Investment Pool
Uncategorized Asset
11/13/2020 Transfer of funds from savings to cover operational expenses - November 13, 2020 $10,000.00 - -10,000.00
10,000.00
11/13/2020 Funds transferred to cover operational expenses - November 13, 2020 $10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00
Total for Uncategorized Asset $0.00
1880130 Fixed Asset Printer
Beginning 2,713.10
Balance
Total for 1880130 Fixed Asset Printer
1880140 Cable System
Beginning 3,658.22
Balance
Total for 1880140 Cable System
TOTAL ASSETS $- $1,698,846.69
20,062.11

Cash Basis Wednesday, December 2, 2020 10:08 AM GMT-08:00

12



West Plains Airport Area PDA

BALANCE SHEET DETAIL
As of November 30, 2020

DATE NAME MEMO/DESCRIPTION DEBIT CREDIT AMOUNT BALANCE
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Direct Deposit Payable
11/05/2020 Todd Coleman Pay Period: 10/16/2020-10/31/2020 $4,275.22 4,275.22 4,275,22
11/05/2020 Todd Coleman Direct Deposit $4,275.22 -4,275.22 0.00
11/05/2020 Todd Coleman Direct Deposit $1,500.00 -1,500.00 -1,500.00
11/05/2020 Sueann K. Herkal Pay Period: 10/16/2020-10/31/2020 $1,679.62 1,679.62 178.62
11/05/2020 Sueann K. Herkel Direct Deposit $1,679.62 -1,679.62 -1,500.00
11/05/2020 Todd Coleman Direct Deposit 2 $1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00
11/20/2020 Todd Coleman Direct Deposit $4,275.22 -4,275.22 -4,275.22
11/20/2020 Todd Coleman Direct Deposit $1,500.00 -1,500.00 -5,775.22
11/20/2020 Sueann K. Herkel Pay Period: 11/01/2020-11/15/2020 $1,692.40 1,692.40 -4,082.82
11/20/2020 Todd Coleman Direct Deposit 2 $1,500.00 1,500.00 -2,582.82
11/20/2020 Sueann K. Herkel Direct Deposit $1,692.40 -1,692.40 -4,275,22
11/20/2020 Todd Coleman Pay Period: 11/01/2020-11/15/2020 $4,275.22 4,275.22 0.00
Total for Direct Deposit Payable $0.00
Employee Payroll Taxes Payable
Beginning Balance 290.86
11/05/2020 Todd Coleman PFML Employee $9.12 9.12 299.98
11/05/2020 Sueann K. Herkel PFML Employee $2.44 244 302.42
11/20/2020 Sueann K. Herkel PFML Employee $2.44 244 304.86
11/20/2020 Todd Coleman PFML Employee $9.12 9.12 313.98
Total for Employee Payroll Taxes Payable $23.12
Employer Payroll Taxes Payable
Beginning Balance 4,617.47
11/02/2020 WA Labor & Industries WA Workers Compensation $100.80 -100.80 4,516.67
11/02/2020 Workers Compensation for L&l (Employee $9.98 9.98 4,526.65
11/05/2020 Todd Coleman Federal Taxes (941/944) $1,029.47 1,029.47 5,556.12
11/05/2020 Sueann K. Herkel Federai Taxes (941/944) $406.82 406.82 5,962.94
11/05/2020 Sueann K. Herkel WA SUI Employer $119.01 119.01 6,081.95
11/05/2020 Sueann K. Herkel WA Workers Compensalion $33.60 33.60 6,115.55
11/05/2020 Sueann K, Herkel WA Paid Family and Medical Leave Tax $5.25 525 6,120.80
11/09/2020 IRS Federal Taxes (941/944) $3,754.58 -3,754.58 2,366.22
11/20/2020 Sueann K. Herkel Federal Taxes (941/944) $406.86 406.86 2,773.08
11/20/2020 Sueann K. Herkel WA SUI Employer $119.00 119.00 2,892.08
11/20/2020 Sueann K. Herkel WA Paid Family and Medical Leave Tax $5.25 5.25 2,897.33
11/20/2020 Todd Coleman Federal Taxes (941/944) $1,029.49 1,029.49 3,926.82
Total for Employer Payroll Taxes Payable $ -690.65
PERS Payable
Beginning Balance 26,447.41
11/05/2020 Sueann K. Herkel PERS - Company Contribution $269.37 269.37 26,716.78
11/05/2020 Todd Coleman PERS $553.99 553.99 27,270.77
11/05/2020 Sueann K. Herkel PERS $164.07 164.07 27,434.84
11/05/2020 Todd Coleman PERS - Company Contribution $909.52 909.52 28,344.36
11/20/2020 Sueann K. Herkel PERS $164.07 164.07 28,508.43
11/20/2020 Todd Coleman PERS - Company Contribution $909.52 908.52 28,417.95
11/20/2020 Todd Coleman PERS $553.99 553.99 29,971.94
11/20/2020 Sueann K, Herkel PERS - Company Contribution $269.37 269.37 30,241.31
Total for PERS Payable $3,793.90
OPEB
Beginning Balance 20,337.00
Total for OPEB
Pension Payable
Beginning Balance 49,712.00
Total for Pension Payable
Total Liabilittes $3,126.37 $104,531.11
Equity
Retained Earmnings $1,471,956.40 $1,471,956.40
Net Income $122,359.18 $122,359.18
Total Equity $1,594,315.58 $1,5984,315.58
Total Liabilities and Equity $1,597,441.95 $1,698,846.69
Cash Basis Wednesday, December 2, 2020 10:08 AM GMT-08:00 212



Action Item No: 121020-02 Board Meeting Date: December 10, 2020

Subject: Approval of Amendment No 2 to the West Plains Chamber Sublease

Background:

The West Plains Chamber of Commerce is a strategic partner in the advancement of the West Plains. The
Chamber currently has a sublease with S3R3 Solutions which expires December 31, 2020. Amendment No
1 to the West Plains Chamber Sublease extended the Sublease through December 31, 2020 consistent
with the Consent to Sublease with Spokane International Airport. Amendment No 2 would extend the
Sublease for an additional 6 months through July 31, 2021. It also removes the guest office from the
Premises and reduces the Rent proportionately from $650 a month to $595 per month for office space
(Suite 103B) and utilities.

Recommendation:

Recommendation is for the S3R3 Solutions board to approve Amendment No. 2 to extend the
Sublease with the West Plains Chamber through July 31, 2021.

Submitted By:

Todd M Coleman, Executive Director

e e =, === .  ———————— P

Date Action Taken:

Motion By:

Seconded By:

Action Taken: (Approved) (Rejected) (Deferred to: )

Approved as modified:




SECOND AMENDMENT TO SUBLEASE

Between
WEST PLAINS AIRPORT AREA PUBLIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
And
WEST PLAINS CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

This Second Amendment to the Sublease Agreement (this “Second Amendment”), is
entered into as of the mutual execution hereof, by and between WEST PLAINS AIRPORT AREA
PUBLIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (dba S3R3 Solutions), a Washington public corporation
defined under RCW 35.21 (hereinafter "Sublessor"), and the WEST PLAINS CHAMBER OF
COMMERCE, a Washington non-profit corporation (hereinafter “Sublessee”), who are
collectively referred to herein as the “Parties.”

WHEREAS, on or about October 25, 2019 the Parties entered into a Sublease Agreement
(the “Sublease Agreement”) which contained to a Term ending the Sublease on July 31, 2020; and

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into an amendment (“Amendment No. 1) of the Sublease
Agreement revising and extending the Term until December 31, 2020, and keeping all other terms
and conditions of the Sublease Agreement the same; and

WHEREAS, the Parties would like to again amend the Sublease Agreement as follows.
All other provisions remain in effect unless specifically noted below:

L. PREMISES. Sublessor hereby agrees to sublease to Sublessee and Sublessee
hereby agrees to sublease from Sublessor, on the terms and conditions set forth in
this Sublease, certain premises consisting of the-Guest-Office-(approximately100
sg/f; Suite 103B (approximately 614 sqg/ft, including two showers for storage and
office), shared use of the conference room, and shared use of the reception area
(collectively, the “Premises”), which are otherwise depicted on Exhibit A, and
which are generally located in the building leased by Sublessor and located at 7106
W. Will D Alton Lane, Ste 103A, Spokane, WA 99224 (the “Building”™).

2. TERM. The term (“Term”) of this Sublease shall begin on October 1, 2019 (the
“Commencement Date”) and end on July Deeember July 31, 2021 (the “Expiration
Date”), which may be extended upon the mutual written consent of the Parties.

3. TOTAL MONTHLY RENT AND OTHER CHARGES.

a. Sublessee shall pay to Sublessor in advance, commencing on the Rent
Commencement Date (prorating for any partial month) and thereafter on the
first day of each calendar month during the term of this Sublease, without
demand, and without deduction or offsets, to the address set forth below in
the Section entitled “Address for Rent Payments,” Base Rent and Operating
Expenses, which shall be collectively referred to in this Sublease as “Rent.”
All Rent shall be paid in good funds and legal tender of the United States of

Page 1 of §



America. All Rent obligations hereunder are independent covenants, and
are broken down as follows:

Base Rent $500.00 $445.00

Sublessee Share of Operating Expenses $150.00

Total monthly Rent payment =  $650:00 $595.00 (herein “Rent”)
4. An Amended Consent to Sublease is attached as Exhibit B.

LESSOR: LESSEE:

S3R3 SOLUTIONS WEST PLAINS CHAMBER OF
COMMERCE

Approved by: Approved by:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

Page 2 of §



State of Washington )

) ss.
County of Spokane )
[ certify that [ know or have satisfactory evidence that is the person
who
appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that s/he signed this instrument and
acknowledged it as the of WEST PLAINS

AIRPORT AREA PUBLIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, SUBLESSOR, to be the free
and voluntary act of such party for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument.

Dated this day of , 2020.

Printed Name:
Notary Public in and for the state of Washington
My appointment expires:

State of Washington )
) ss.
County of Spokane )

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that is
the person who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that s/he signed this instrument
and acknowledged it as the of WEST PLAINS CHAMBER OF
COMMERCE, SUBLESSEE, to be the free and voluntary act of such party for the uses and
purposes mentioned in the instrument.

Dated this day of , 2020.

Printed Name:
Notary Public in and for the state of Washington
My appointment expires:

Page 3 of 5



EXHIBIT A

PREMISES

Page 4 of 5



|01 1338

RIDZ ‘21 "Nvr g

990-Z13y
“EICIORASVET

¥2I266 VM 'ovwiods
1 Y0Z "N5 g Jwdny ey o008

b

38 28S'e
L0} 3UNS

n..o.:knﬂduu

......

T

|

B + LB Py
48 P19 -
BE0L ALNS mm

1)

d4S 64y

3

1

3SN NOWWOD :
22| o' . _lr =
-
& I ¥ IS ZEY'E | S ==
i1z +0t 3Lins dspcer =
S0l AUNS
aszes't IOt ~
27 VEO} 3UNS Y | 1 ] "
2 _ :
:
N ﬁ! _,

V 1I8IHX3 00LLl DNIGTing
HOdHIV TVNOILVNYIINI SNVIOJS

99021 \{¢hag) RN\ o YS\Buppon\G 10z |\

9R0-L13v-§210L1\W +aNrI 0011 Pupung

184 0044 Buipgrg

GVTIZ RLOZ/21/) 'Bapy v

SUON Yuif g 'md



EXHIBIT B

CONSENT TO SUBLEASE

Page 5 of §



Action Item No: 121020-03 Board Meeting Date: December 10, 2020

Subject: Adoption of 2021 Budget

Background:

S3R3 Solutions prepares an annual budget and projected 5-year cash flow for planning purposes. The
Board reviews the budget and projected cash flow quarterly to track against actuals and for periodic
updates. The Board reviewed the Draft 2021 Budget and projected 5-year cash flow at a public meeting
October 2020 and was provided with an updated 2021 Budget and cash flow at the November 2020
regular board meeting.

The adoption of the 2021 Budget provides a guidance tool to financial sustainability in the PDA’s business
plan to ensure short- and long-term growth consistent with Goal 5 of the Draft 2021 Strategic Plan.
Periodic revisions to the budget are anticipated as needed to adapt to changing economic conditions.

Recommendation:

Recommendation is for the S3R3 Solutions board to adopt the 2021 Budget with quarterly updates to be
provided by staff in 2021.

Submitted By:

Todd M Coleman, Executive Director

Date Action Taken:

Motion By:

Seconded By:

Action Taken: (Approved) (Rejected) (Deferred to: )

Approved as modified:




S3R3 Solutions 2021 Budget

Non-Op Revenue

Beginning Cash $
Property Tax - Base Contribution $
Property Tax - Contribution from Increased Assessed Value $
Property Tax - Contribution from New Construction $
Sales Tax - Base Contribution $
Sales Tax - Contribution from New Construction $
Sales Tax - Contribution from Sales from New Business $
Utility Tax - Contribution from New Business $
Interest $
Non-Op Revenue $
Operating Revenue $

Building Lease $

Fiber Leases $

2021

1,580,000

65,650.00

132,837.91
47,819.79

443,422.39
35,898.39

2,550.00
31,600.00
728,178.48
270,600.00
270,600.00



Operating Expenses

Office Expenses

Office Lease

Leasehold Excise Tax

Tax and License

Utilities (Electricy, Natural Gas, Disposal)
Insurance

Office Supplies

Communications (Phones, internet & postage)
Office Furniture

Office Equipment

Business Meals

Human Resource

Salaries

Federal Employment Taxes

State Employment Taxes

Health Benefits

Public Employee Retirement Systermns

Capital/infrastructure Improvements
Fiber

Debt Service on Fiber

Building

Debt Service on Building

Ground Lease

Professional & Personal Services
Legal

Accounting Services

State Auditors Office

Architects, Engineers, Planners

IT Services

Consulting Rosters

Marketing Services
Conferences/Association Meetings
Dues and Subscriptions
Stormwater Study

Wetlands

Transporation

Travel
Travel Remimbursement

Ending Cash
Reserve Fund (6 month)
Ending Cash minus Reserve Fund

P A P A B A e P s A

w3 B B B

1 O A s

P B B o s BB P a B on O B

56,417.13
14,144.04
1,816.09
50.00
4,000.00
9,198.00
12,000.00
6,000.00
500.00
4,709.00
4,000.00

471,435.87
350.439.84
24,530.79
15,769.79
35,243.40
45,452.05

1,020,785.00
150,000.00

800,000.00

70,785.00

634,085.00
50,000.00
12,000.00

5,150.00
50,000.00
6,800.00
135.00
150,000.00
7,500.00
2,500.00
225,000.00
75,000.00
50,000.00

50,000.00
50,000.00

346,055.47
250,000.00
96,055.47



000008
00008118
00'008°G68
OSPIS 80T
21'898's¢
TP'618°C

5996962
00°000°00€
0000008

PP EF0'€9s
18'866°39
90V°€6L L

9¢0c

o " A o B

L A R Y Y SNy

000008
00008°T18
00008568
SIS GIZ'T
Tv'1eL'se
02°09.7C

peLT0L82
00'000'00€
0000008
SL8VLLY
S95TE'99
LiE'982‘L

T4

A L S

@,

0000048
00'008°T18
00'008°G68
L IEIECTT
r9v68°91
80902

80'055°08¢
00°000°00¢
0000008
vYETb.LC6E
92'6£9/9
zZeL'vre

veoe

A ™ n W

A N H

s

0000078
00008718
00'008°568
I862/Z2€0T
1989¢°6
20€59C

W052%L2
00000°00¢
00000°08
18258'80¢
L5'696'99
LEV ‘89D

€¢0¢

£ jo T a8ey

M n s

T H A

00'000°05€
00'008°T18
00008'19T'T
LLLET/E
IT'126%9
00709

9€'G// 96T
00000°00€
8G'0£E°cCT
82V 78T
05'90£°99
SS0‘9bE

[4d4

MO|d yse pajoaloaygd

595227 J3qI4

00009°'0L2 $ asea7 Suiping
00009072 g anuaaay Sunetadg
SbeLI8e/ $ anuansy dp-uon
00'009'1¢ $ 1s8431U|
00°055°C $ §sauIsng maN woJy uonnguiuo) - xe| Awpn
65'868°GE $ SSUISNG MON LWOJ) SI[BS WOy UOHNQIIUD) - Xe| S3[eg
6c 2P eby m UO[}2NJISUO) M3N Lo UONQUIUOY) - Xe| Sajeg
6/'618°LYy g uolIdruIsuo) MaN Wwoly uonnguiuo) - xe} Auadouy
16/€8°251 $ °neA passassy pasealsu| woly uonnguiuo) - xej Auadolyd
0006969 [y uonnquiuc) aseg - xe| b‘_uno\_n_
000°08S‘L $ yses buluuibag

anuaaay dpo-uoN
Teoc

189 A G suonnjos €HES L2oe



€ Jo g 99eq

£/'980°08 $ OpEel'sL $ 0L122'9¢L 5 6/895VL § €9Y55'2L § 0068L°0L $ asea punosy
9T'285'v29 $  91'Z8E'H29 $ 91Z8E'29 $ 9T'Z8E'e9 § 91'28¢'rZ9 $ - $ Buipping uo ad1mes 19aQ
- $ = S - $ - $ - $ 00000008 $ Buipiing
00°0v0ty $  000v0tY $  000r0Y $  00070'bY $  000r0PY $ $ 19q14 U0 8d1uag 193Q
- $ . $ - $ - $ 00E€EE8e $ 00000°05T $ 1314
68'80S‘8PL SS°SSS‘OpL 98"6v9‘virL $9°06.°ZvL 8.°60E‘VZL L 00°58.‘0Z0°L sjuawanoidw] asnjonasesujepded
L£662°55 $  L¥2LTES §  L£/2T°158 $ £609T'6v § €U0y § SOTSH'Sy $ swashs Juawaunay aakojdwy diqngd
86'8/8°Cy $ 6L'622°TY $  €OVYI'6E $ 9z6IT8E § PT'E59'98 $ orevzise $ syeuag yyeay
9£'931°61 $  €bBrrel § /88€L'/T $ 19950'/1 $  8500K9T $ 6L69L'ST $ saxe| wawAojdwy alelg
S'SYR'62 $ S9/69'9C $ 09€65'/T $ 0528592 § 2071662 $ 605572 $ saxe] jwawfojdwy esapay
S9'E9E 9y $ S0'G96'60F $ 9T'/6Iv6E § €LSE06LE § €vISY9E $ ¥86EP0SE 5 saueeg
Z8ELS‘ELS 6Z°ELSLSS PZ' LOE'DES v0°'S06°60S 0£°£6Z'061 L8"SEVLLY 92IN0Say uewny
00000 $ 00000 $ 00000% $ 00000 $ 00000 $ 00000 $ sTeapy ssauisng
00'60L'y $  0060LY $ 0060L% $ 0060LY $ 0060L% $ 0060LY $ wawdinby oo
00005 $ 00005 $ 0000S $ 0000S $ 000005 $ 00005 $ aimiuing 830
8r'¥29'9 §  65V609 $ GZ/9E9 $ ov'zre9 $ 000219 $ 000009 $ (38e3s0d 3 19UIAIUI ‘SBUOY ) SUORERIILUNWIWLIOD
L68YTET $ 6168671 § 0SbELTT $  08Y8Yel 5 000v22T $ 0000021 $ sanddng 2210
00'€99°01 $  £b'7SE0T $ 0605001 $ 9T'8GL'6 $ VEELY'E $ 008616 $ 3duERINSUY|
0T'L£9Y $  ¥020SY §  160.EW §  09¢vey § 00021 $ 00000 $ (fesodsig ‘sen TeinieN ‘Aou3de(3) sannnn
0008 $ 0008 $ 0008 S 0008 $ 0008 $ 0005 $ 3s5U92(7 pue xe|
YEPEE'T § S16922 $ LT $ 92002T § 2TLSTT $ 609181 $ Xe| 8sioX3 ployasea]
98'v81°8T $  62978°L1 $  2L8LYLT $ 009ET’LT $ 0000891 S POPPIPT $ asea] 2210
S€'Z86v9 69°tPL‘'E9 PS°GES‘T9 TT'PSEL9 90°00Z‘09 €L LLP'9S sasuadx3y 210
sasuadx3z Buneiado

9202 G20z rzoe £20¢ 2202 1202



ZE8ET'Sh
S¥'/85'60L
8/£'G2L0SL

0000005
26'p28°59¢

4

00°000°05
00°000°0S

000052
00005°Z
00°000°05
00°GET
000089
00000°05
9Z'0L6'S
62TI6ET
0L'€96'LS
S2'08L'v6L
9z0¢

$
$
$

$

T T A 7 o 3 B Y o

(69°600°92)
1£182°089
20'2L2vs9

00000052

00'000°05
00°000‘0S

000052
00°005°2
00'000°05
006€T
00'008°g
00'000'05
LE96L'S
1T'905°¢T
vr'6L2°95
Z6°Z1S'Z61
6207

26°S0P°'E6L

$

$
$

3

B A P A F s A B O H B B

(852€6°G6)
06'€16'659
ZE'T86'655

0000005
z5°0.2£f

0000006
00°000°05

00°005°2
0000S°L
00000°05
00'SET
000089
00°000°0S
vSL29'G
CLTIT'ET
GE'9ETYS
Z9'LIE'06)
j£d\4

98¢

$
$

i R T T Y S T A . S S S

$ (88'Y09Y9T)

68'8v¥'2€9
10v¥8°L9Y

00000052
zZ0°ZgL"

0000005
00°000°05

000052
00'00S'~
00'000°05
00'G€T
00'008'9
0000005
voE9r's
08'0££°2T
00'SH0'€S
vrbLL‘88L
£202

vre

€ Jo g adeq

A N A T i B A s B O

(6£°622'822)
98'248'609
Li'€29'18E

00000052

SS0EY 89D

00'000°05
00°000°0S

00005C
00°005°2
00°000°05
00'SET
00'008°9
00°000°05
0S¥0€'S
00'09£2T
00°005°TS
05°660°983
220z

$
$
S

$

L B i - G A A - B - VY

(0€'086%0€)

00'8€y'68S
0L'£5¥'082

00000052

Lb'SS0'9PE

00°000°05
00°000°0S
00°000°05
00'000'G/
00'000'522
000052
00'005°/
00'000'0ST
00'SET
00'008'9
00°000°05
00°0STS
0000021
00'000'0S
00°S80‘vE9
1202

$

®N
150) 8unessdg Areuonaidsiq uon
(3Nuanal xe1 ssjes Sulpn|oxa) anuanay

3sal Aypiqeureisng

puny an3say

yse buipuz

USWSSINqUILaY |aARI |
[ELGITY

uopjesodsuel |

SPUElISM

Apmis JajemuLIolg
suopduasgng pue sang
S3uUI9spy UONHEIDOSSY /S3IUIa0Y)
saoimag uneyiey

sia1s0y Sumnsuo)

SIJINMBS ||

sisuue]d ‘sizauldul ‘spoanydy
22O sioupny arEIS

saoinueg Bununodoy

Teda

SIOJIAISS |EU0SIDg B [RUOISSD§0Id



Action Item No: 121020-04 Board Meeting Date: December 10, 2020

Subject: Adoption of 2021 Strategic Plan

Background:

S3R3 Solutions was created for the purpose of adding new, above the median wage, jobs to the Spokane
Region through the recruitment of new business and expansion of existing business. This purpose is
achieved through the following five primary goals:

1) Provide business with certainty of schedule, budget and outcome

2) Market the West Plains and Spokane region with a targeted focus on the advanced manufacturing
and aerospace industries

3) Foster strategic partnerships to further economic development and the creation of jobs in the
West Plains and Spokane region

4) Develop an inventory to support new business development and the expansion of existing

business
5) Create financial sustainability in the PDA’s business plan to ensure short- and long-term growth.

The adoption of an annual Strategic Plan communicates the S3R3 Board’s mission, vision and goals and
aligns resources to meet the organizations objectives. It is anticipated the S3R3 Board will revisit and
adjust the Strategic Plan annually or as needed to adapt to changing economic and/or market conditions.

Recommendation:
Recommendation is for the S3R3 Solutions board to adopt the 2021 Strategic Plan.

Submitted By:

Todd M Coleman, Executive Director

Date Action Taken:

Motion By:

Seconded By:

Action Taken: (Approved) (Rejected) (Deferred to: )

Approved as modified:




2021 Strategic Plan

Mission

The West Plains Airport Area Public Development Authority was created for the purpose of adding new, above the
median wage, jobs to the Spokane Region through the recruitment of new business and expansion of existing business.

Vision

The West Plains Airport Area is a globally recognized innovation zone with a cluster of advanced manufacturing and
aerospace companies. These companies employ thousands of people with a median income 20% greater than those in
the surrounding region. There is adequate infrastructure to support growth of commerce due to the collaborative and
proactive planning for the area. Companies choose the West Plains Airport Area because of its robust multimodal
transportation system that provides efficient logistics via runway, roadway and rail.

Goal 1
Provide business with certainty of schedule, budget and outcome.
Key Initiatives:

e Support business in the due diligence process for go/no go decisions and permitting.
o Measurement:
= Number of businesses assisted in process: Goal - 8 businesses
= Number of successful assists to operation: Goal - 3 businesses (1 in manufacturing/aerospace)

e  Prioritize marketing and development of SIA properties released or soon to be released by FAA.
o Measurement:

= In cooperation with SIA develop an inventory of properties available for development with
FAA surplus actions complete by mid-year 2021.

= |n cooperation with SIA develop an inventory of properties to be made available for
development with FAA surplus action in process to in near future {0-5 years) by mid-year 2021.

= In cooperation with SIA create property flyer(s) for available properties by year end 2021.

= Highlight properties in the designated Opportunity Zone, the proposed transload facility and
access to Spokane International Airport.

e Adjust land use within the PDA in coordination with the City and County Planning Commissions to align with
highest and best use.
o Measurement:
= Develop an overview of proposed uses and supporting infrastructure by end of 1%t quarter
2021.
= Present to the respective Planning Commissions proposed changes to land use by end of 2™
quarter 2022.
= Incorporate changes into future Comprehensive Plan updates dependent on City/County
schedules.



e Coordinate infrastructure development to include water, sewer, stormwater, fiber and wetlands mitigation.
o Measurement:

Goal 2

Work with City to include fire flow and sewer capacity into their Capital improvement
Program.

Promote new water and sewer infrastructure in the ground.

Install new fiber conduit in the West Plains.

Complete the stormwater study with implementable regional facilities by end of 2" quarter

2021.

Develop a funding and operation strategy for the regional stormwater facilities by end of 2"
quarter 2021.

Complete draft prospectus for wetlands mitigation by 37 quarter 2021.

Have marketable wetland mitigation bank credits available by summer 2022.

Market the West Plains and Spokane region with a targeted focus on the advanced manufacturing and aerospace

industries.

Key Initiatives:

e Recruit new and expanding businesses into the West Plains Airport Area.
o Measurement:

Participate in target industry events.
Present at forums to brokers, site selectors and target industry.
Conduct one-on-one meetings with potential customers.

e Develop strategic advertising campaign to target markets.
o Measurement:

Run advertisements in target sector media by mid-year 2021.

e Promote the area as an innovation zone for development.
o Measurement:

2|Page

Create a framework for development of a circular economy
e Supportive legislation during 2021 legislative session
o Concept plan by year end 2021
Develop a synergy with the Waste to Energy plant.
e Reuse of recycled materials
e Develop concept for a recycle, reuse and innovation park by year end 2021.

Dec 2020

. S 3R 3

8 O LU TI1I ONS




Goal 3

Foster strategic partnerships to further economic development and the creation of jobs in the West Plains and
Spokane region.

Key Initiatives:

e  Work with legislators to create support state and federal legislation and grant programs to support
innovation zones, advanced manufacturing and aerospace sectors
o Measurement:
= Meet with legislators in Olympia and Washington DC: Goal is two trips each
®  Pass a bill supporting the creation of innovation zones by 2" quarter 2021
®  Obtain a grant for infrastructure, planning or marketing opportunities in the PDA
= Develop a working relationship with County lobbyist to support initiatives.

e Participate in key industry associations to further the PDA’s mission and vision {(e.g. WEDA, AWB, WPPA,
INWAC, etc.)
o Measurement:
= Actively participate in key industry associations: Goal is four with measurable outcomes
(leads on funding or business recruitment)

e leverage the cooperative partnership between the City, County, Airport and PDA
o Measurement:
®  Maintain coordination with City, County and Airport on Stormwater Study and regional
facility design
= Add PDA infrastructure to the City 6-year Capital Improvement Plan

Goal 4
Develop an inventory to support new business development and the expansion of existing business.

Key Initiatives:

e Proactively develop multimodal transportation facilities to support efficient movement of goods and

employees via road, runway and rail
o Measurement:
= Completion of the transload facility
= Implementation of multiuse trails into the regional stormwater conveyance systems
= Develop a priority list of transportation projects for approval by the PDA Board

e Prepare vacant land of various sizes and locations in both private and public ownership for shovel ready

development
o Measurement:

=  Coordinate shovel ready status property with private property owners: Goals 5 acre and under
site, 5 to 20-acre sites, 20 to 100-acre sites, greater than 100-acre site and list on PDA website

e Develop and support an inventory of buildings of various sizes in both public and private ownership for

immediate occupation by new and expanded business.
o Measurement:
= Promote building square footage of vacant space available for immediate lease
= S3R3 complete first building by year end 2021.

3|Page . R Dec 2020
N S5 NS

I @ N 8§



Goal 5
Create financial sustainability in the PDA’s business plan to ensure short- and long-term growth.
Key Initiatives:

e Maintain a consistent history of clean audits with the Washington State Auditor’s Office.

e Develop adequate funding tools to achieve the mission and goals of the PDA (e.g. grants, tax revenue sharing,
bonding capacity, etc.)

e Model for and deliver a target return on investment (ROI) on projects within the PDA by end of 1% quarter
2021.

e Maintain a positive cash flow year over year.

e Develop a comprehensive project evaluation matrix considering Goals 1 through 5 for consistent and informed
decision making by mid-year 2021.

4|Page Dec 2020

23S 3R 3

S O L U T 1 ON 8




S8R 3

S5 10 i UL T IO SN s

Action Item No: 121020-05 Board Meeting Date: December 10, 2020
Subject: Resolution 2020-01 Concerning Contract Expenditures

Background:

In September 2019 the S3R3 Board approved a contract with Houdini to provide marketing
services not to exceed $89,285.00. The scope of work and budget proposed identified an
additional $7,250.00 in funds to allow flexibility to adjust the scope of work to develop additional
marketing items for specific uses identified during the contract term. During the development of
marketing materials staff identified the following out of scope items:

e QR Code directing to website for presentations

e Brochure for contractors stating the importance of reporting sales tax to the appropriate
focation in the PDA to support West Plains growth

e Project page on the website

e Additional merchandise for customers

e Form boards for office stating mission and values.
This Resolution ratifies the changes to the contract in the amount of $7,250.00.
Recommendation:

Recommendation is for the S3R3 Solutions board to approve and ratify the expenditures of the
Contract Contingency Amounts as a part of the overall Contract amount.

Submitted By:

Todd M Coleman, Executive Director

Date Action Taken:

Motion By:

Seconded By:

Action Taken: (Approved) (Rejected) (Deferred to: )

Approved as modified:




WEST PLAINS/AIRPORT AREA PUBLIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
d/b/a S3R3 SOLUTIONS

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-01

(Concerning Contract Expenditures)

WHEREAS, on or about September 19, 2019 the Board of Directors of the West Plains
Airport Area Public Development Authority (the “PDA”) approved a contract (the “Contract™)
with Houdini Interactive, LLC (“Houdini”) to assist the PDA with the development of a marketing
strategy and various materials in support thereof; and

WHEREAS, the value of the Contract originally approved by the Board was EIGHTY-
NINE THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED EIGHTY-FIVE DOLLARS ($89,285.00) (the “Contact
Amount”); and

WHEREAS, a copy of the Contract is appended hereto as Attachment A, and a copy of
the approval of the Contract by the Board is appended hereto as Attachment B; and

WHEREAS, included in the original scope of services in the Contract, but outside the
approved Contract Amount is an additional amount of SEVEN THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED
FIFTY DOLLARS ($7,250.00) to be used to accommodate any additional requests that extend
beyond the budget allocation or for services extended beyond the original scope (the “Contract
Contingency Amount”), as described on Exhibit A to Attachment A; and

WHEREAS, on or about March 18, 2020 Houdini requested the payment of FIVE
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($5,000.00) from the Contract Contingency Amount for the work
specified in the email correspondence attached hereto as Attachment C; and

WHEREAS, in response to this request staff approved and paid the Contract Contingency
Amount requested;

WHEREAS, on or about June 15, 2020 Houdini requested the payment of TWO
THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS ($2,250.00) for website development, project
management and website maintenance, as described on the email correspondence attached hereto
as Attachment D; and

WHEREAS, in response this request staff approved and paid the Contact Contingency
Amount requested;

WHEREAS, the combined total of the requested and paid Contact Contingency Amounts
is SEVEN THOUSAND TWO HUNRED FIFTY DOLLARS ($7,250.00); and

Resolution 2020-01: Page 1 of 6



WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3.7 and Section 6.6 of the corporate bylaws, the
affirmative vote of a simple majority of board members is required to adopt board resolutions
regarding the expenditure of funds.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the West Plains Airport Area Public
Development Authority approves and hereby ratifies the expenditure of the Contact Contingency
Amounts as a part of the overall Contract amount.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the officers of the PDA are hereby authorized and
directed to take all action necessary and proper to effectuate the foregoing.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, any actions of the Board of Directors or staff of the
West Plains/Airport Area Public Development Authority prior to the date hereof and consistent
with the terms of this resolution are ratified and confirmed.

ADOPTED by an affirmative majority vote of the Board of Directors of the West Plains
Public Development Authority on the 10® day of December 2020.

WEST PLAINS PUBLIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

Al French, Board Chair

SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE

], the undersigned, Secretary of the West Plains Public Development Authority Board
of Directors, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of Washington,
do hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was duly approved and adopted by the Board
of Directors of the corporation at a meeting of the Board of Directors duly called and held on
the 10th day of December, 2020, at which meeting a quorum was present; and that said
resolution, as set out above, will appear in the minutes of said meeting in the corporation’s
minute book.

DATED this day of 2020.

Greg Birchell, Board Secretary

Resolution 2020-01: Page 2 of 6



ATTACHMENT A
(Houdini Contract)

Resolution 2020-01: Page 3 of 6



WEST PLAINS/AIRPORT AREA PDA

7106 W Will D Alton Lane, Suite 103A, Spokane, WA 99224

Marketing Collateral Services
WEST PLAINS AIRPORT AREA PUBLIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES

Consultant: Houdini Interactive LLC.

This Agreement is entered into by and between the West Plains Airport Area Public Development Authority, a quasi-municipal
corporation created pursuant to RCW 35.21.730 - .755 (hereinafter the “PDA"), and Houdini Interactive LLC, a for profit
corporation registered in the State of Washington (hereinafter the “Consultant"), who are sometimes collectively referred to
herein as the “Parties” or singularly as a “Party.”

WHEREAS, Consultant possesses certain professional expertise related to developing marketing collateral and marketing
strategy; and

WHEREAS, the PDA desires to engage Consultant to perform consulting services consistent with its professional expertise
and as hereinafter described; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits and conditions set forth below, the parties hereto agree as

follows:

1.

3.

Scope of Services to be Performed by Consultant. The Consultant shall perform those services described in Exhibit
“A” of this agreement. In performing such services, the Consultant shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws
and regulations applicable to the performance of such services. The Consultant shall perform services diligently and
completely and in accordance with professional standards of conduct and performance.

Compensation and Method of Payment. The Consultant shall submit invoices for work performed monthly.

The PDA shall pay Consultant:

[Check applicable method of payment]

X_ According to the scope of services and rates set forth in Exhibit "A"
X A sum not to exceed $ 89,285.00

___ Other (describe):

The Consultant shall provide Taxpayer Identification Number, prior to or along with the first invoice submittal. The
PDA shall pay the Consultant for services rendered within fifieen days of invoice.

Duration of Agreement. The Parties acknowledge and affirm the overall project timeline listed in Exhibit A. In the
event that Consultant fails to meet this timeline, this Agreement shall remain in effect for a reasonable period of time
sufficient to allow Consultant to perform the work described in Exhibit A, which shall not exceed one (1) year from
the date of mutual execution of this Agreement. This Agreement may be terminated sooner pursuant to the provisions
provided in Paragraph 10 herein.

Ownership and Use of Documents. Any records, files, documents, drawings, specifications, data or information,
regardless of form or format, and all other materials produced by the Consultant in connection with the services
provided to the PDA, shall be the property of the PDA whether the project for which they were created is executed
or not. Any modification or reuse of such materials for purposes other than those intended by this Agreement shall
be at PDA’s sole risk and without liability to Consultant.

Page 1 of 7



Independent Contractor. The Consultant and the PDA agree that the Consultant is an independent contractor with
respect to the services provided pursuant to this Agreement. The Consultant will solely be responsible for its acts and
for the acts of its agents, employees, subconsultants, or representatives during the performance of this Agreement.
Nothing in this Agreement shall be considered to create the relationship of employer and employee between the
parties hereto.

Indemnification. Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the PDA, its officers, officials, employees and
volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits including reasonable attorney fees,
arising out of or resulting from the negligent or wrongful acts, errors or omissions of the Consultant in performance
of this Agreement. PDA shall defend, indemnify and hold Consultant, its officers, officials, and employees harmless
from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits including reasonable attorney fees, arising out of or
resulting from the negligent or wrongful acts, errors or omissions of PDA in performance of this Agreement. The
Parties understand and agree that the duty to defend is absolute and shall arise immediately upon the defending Party
receiving written notice of its obligation to defend from the other Party and is not otherwise contingent upon a finding
of negligence or wrongful acts, errors or omissions by a court. It is further specifically and expressly understood that
the indemnification provided herein constitutes each Party’s waiver of immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51
RCW, solely for the purposes of this indemnification. This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties. The
provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement,

Insurance.

A. The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries
to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work
hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees.

B. In the event of liability for damages arising out of such services, or bodily injury to persons or damages to property,
caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the Consultant and the PDA, its officers, officials,
employees, and volunteers, the Consultant's liability hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Consultant's
negligence.

Minimum Scope of Insurance
Consultant shall obtain insurance of the types described below:

1. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and leased vehicles. Coverage shall be
written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability
coverage. If necessary, the policy shall be endorsed to provide contractual liability coverage.

2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on 1SO occurrence form CG 00 01 and shall cover
liability arising from premises, operations, independent contractors and personal injury and advertising injury.
The PDA shall be named as an additional insured under the Contractor’s Commercial General Liability insurance
policy with respect to the work performed for the PDA. The PDA, its officers, officials, employees and
volunteers are to be covered as additional insured with respect to liability arising out of work or operations
performed by or on behalf of the Consultant including materials, parts, or equipment furnished in connection
with such work or operations. General liability coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the
Consultant’s insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33,
or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 forms if later revisions used).

3. Workers’ Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance laws of the State of Washington.
4. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the Consultant’s profession.

Minimum Amounts of Insurance
Consultant shall maintain the following insurance limits:

1. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage
of $1,000,000 per accident.

2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than $1,000,000 each occurrence,
$2,000,000 general aggregate.

Page 2 of 7



3. Professional Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than 2,000,000 per claim and $2,000,000
policy aggregate limit.

Other Insurance Provisions
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions for Automobile Liability,
Professional Liability and Commercial General Liability insurance:

1. The Consultant’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the PDA. Any insurance, self-
insurance, or insurance pool coverage maintained by the PDA shall be excess of the Consultant’s insurance
and shall not contribute with it.

2. The Consultant’s insurance shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be cancelled by either party
except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the PDA.

3. Self -insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the PDA. The PDA may require the Consultant
to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses
within the retention. The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured
retention may be satisfied by either the named insured or the PDA.

Waiver of Subrogation

Consultant hereby grants to the PDA a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of said Consultant may
acquire against the PDA by virtue of the payment of any loss under such insurance. Consultant agrees to obtain any
endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation, but his provision applies regardless of
whether or not the PDA has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Acceptability of Insurers
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less than A:VII.

Claims Made Policies
If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:

1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the beginning of contract
work.

2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years after
completion of the contract work.

3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form with a
Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Consultant must purchase “extended reporting” coverage
for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of contract work.

Verification of Coverage

Consultant shall furnish the PDA with original certificates and a copy of the amendatory endorsements, including
but not necessarily limited to the additional insured endorsement, evidencing the insurance requirements of the
Consultant before commencement of the work. However, failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work
beginning shall not waive the Consultant’s obligation to provide them. The PDA reserves the right to require
complete copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at any
time, provided that Consultant may redact confidential and/or proprietary information that is unrelated to
Consultant’s insurance obligations under this Agreement.

Subcontractors

Should subcontracting be agreed to by the parties, the Consultant shall cause each and every Subcontractor to provide
insurance coverage that complies with all applicable requirements of the Consultant-provided insurance as set forth
herein, except the Consultant shall have sole responsibility for determining the limits of coverage required to be
obtained by Subcontractors. The Consultant shall ensure that the PDA is an additional insured on each and every
Subcontractor’s Commercial General liability insurance policy using an endorsement at least as broad as the
Insurance Services Office Additional Insured endorsement CG 20 38 04 13.

Special Risks or Circumstances

The PDA reserves the right to reasonably modify these requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the
risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.

Page 3 of 7



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Record Keeping and Reporting.

A. The Consultant shall maintain accounts and records, including personnel, property, financial, and programmatic
records, which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs of any nature expended and services
performed pursuant to this Agreement. The Consultant shall also maintain such other records as may be deemed
necessary by the PDA to ensure proper accounting of all funds contributed by the PDA to the performance of
this Agreement.

B. The foregoing records shall be maintained for a period of seven years after termination of this Agreement unless
permission to destroy them is granted by the Office of the Archivist in accordance with RCW Chapter 40.14 and
by the PDA.,

Audits and Inspections. The records and documents with respect to all matters covered by this Agreement shall be
subject at all times to inspection, review, or audit by the PDA during the performance of this Agreement.

Termination.

A. The PDA reserves the right to terminate or suspend this Agreement at any time, with or without cause, upon
seven days prior written notice, provided that the PDA will not terminate this Agreement for cause without
providing Consultant with a reasonable opportunity to cure. In the event of termination or suspension, all finished
or unfinished documents, data, studies, worksheets, models, reports or other materials prepared by the Consultant
pursuant to this Agreement shall promptly be submitted to the PDA.

B. Inthe event this Agreement is terminated or suspended, the Consultant shall be entitled to payment for all services
performed and reimbursable expenses incurred to the date of termination.

C. This Agreement may be cancelled immediately if the Consultant's insurance coverage is canceled for any reason,
or if the Consultant is unable to perform the services called for by this Agreement.

D. The Consultant reserves the right to terminate this Agreement with not less than fourteen days written notice in
the event that outstanding invoices are not paid within sixty days. This provision shall not prevent the PDA from
seeking any legal remedies it may otherwise have for the violation or nonperformance of any provisions of this
Agreement.

Discrimination Prohibited. The Consultant shall not discriminate against any employee, applicant for employment,
or any person seeking the services of the Consultant under this Agreement, on the basis of race, color, religion, creed,
sex, age, national origin, marital status, or presence of any sensory, mental, or physical handicap.

Assignment and Subcontract. The Consultant shall not assign or subcontract any portion of the services
contemplated by this Agreement without the prior written consent of the PDA.

Conflict of Interest. The PDA insists on the highest level of professional ethics from its consultants. Consultant
warrants that it has performed a due diligence conflicts check, and that there are no professional conflicts with the
PDA. Consultant warrants that none of its officers, agents or employees is now working on a project for any entity
engaged in litigation with the PDA. Consultant will not disclose any information obtained through the course of their
work for the PDA to any third party, without written consent of the PDA. It is the Consultant's duty and obligation
to constantly update its due diligence with respect to conflicts, and not the PDA's obligation to inquire as to potential
conflicts. This provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.

Confidentiality. All information regarding the PDA obtained by the Consultant in performance of this Agreement
shall be considered confidential. Breach of confidentiality by the Consultant shall be grounds for immediate
termination.

Non-appropriation of funds. If sufficient funds are not appropriated or allocated for payment under this Agreement
for any future fiscal period, the PDA will so notify the Consultant and shall not be obligated to make payments for
services or amounts incurred after the end of the current fiscal period. This Agreement will terminate upon the
completion of all remaining services for which funds are allocated. No penalty or expense shall accrue to the PDA
in the event that the terms of the provision are effectuated.

Page 4 of 7



16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

24,

25.

Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties, and no other agreements,
oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or bind either of the parties.
Either party may request changes to the Agreement. Changes which are mutually agreed upon shall be incorporated
by written amendments to this Agreement.

Notices. Notices to the West Plains Airport Area PDA shall be sent to the following address:

West Plains Airport Area Public Development Authority
7106 W Will D Alton Lane, Suite 103A

Spokane, WA 99224

Phone number: (509) 607-6556

Email: TColeman@ WestPlainsPDA.com

Notices to the Consultant shall be sent to the following address:
Company Name_Houdini Interactive LLC
Contact Name Pendergraf Brownlee
Street Address 108 N Washington Suite 412
City, State Zip Spokane, WA 99201
Phone Number (509) 230 4166
Email Penn@houdini.studio

Applicable Law; Venue; Attorneys’ Fees. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
the laws of the State of Washington. In the event any suit, arbitration, or other proceeding is instituted to enforce any
term of this Agreement, the parties specifically understand and agree that venue shall be exclusively in Spokane
County, Washington. The prevailing party in any such action shall be entitled to its attorneys’ fees and costs of suit,
which shall be fixed by the judge hearing the case, and such fee shall be included in the judgment.

City of Spokane Business License. The Consultant shall obtain a City of Spokane business license prior to
performing any services and maintain the business license in good standing throughout the term of this Agreement.

Severability. Any provision or part of this Agreement held to be void or unenforceable under any law or regulation
shall be deemed stricken and all remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and binding upon the PDA and the
Consultant, who agree that the Agreement shall be reformed to replace such stricken provision or part with a valid
and enforceable provision that comes as close as reasonably possible to expressing the intent of the stricken provision.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and by each of the undersigned on
separate counterparts, which counterparts taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

Good Faith. The Parties to this Agreement agree to act in good faith and make all reasonable efforts to satisfy the
conditions of the Agreement.

Authorizations. All individuals executing this Agreement and other documents on behalf of the respective Parties
certify and warrant that they have the capacity and have been duly authorized to so execute the documents on behalf
of the Party so indicated.

Advice of Attorneys. Each party represents and warrants that in executing this Agreement, each has been advised
by or has had an opportunity to be advised by independent legal counsel. Each party has read the terms of this
Agreement and understands their consequences. Each party further acknowledges and represents that, in executing
this Agreement, it has not relied on any inducements, promises or representations made by any other party or its
representatives, except as otherwise stated in this Agreement.

Exhibits and Recitals Incorporated. The Recital section above and Exhibit A attached hereto are each incorporated
into this Agreement by this reference.

Page 5 of 7



WEST PLAINS AIRPORT AREA PUBLIC
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

Title; Executive Director

Date: A 2d41q

Page 6 of 7

CONSULTANT

By:.

Print Name: Pendergraf Brownlce

Title: Managing Director

Date:

09/24/2019



WEST PLAINS/AIRPORT AREA PDA

Exhibit A

Marketing Collateral Services
Scope of Services and Rates

September 20, 2019

Page 7 of 7



6102°ZT°60 / 3unaun ‘yabpng ‘ysiy ysey

EYES




sisfjeue | OMS pale|diuod 2afoud siy1 Jo adoos ayy uiym

pue ‘souaipne psulep sjuswiala sy} Bunesis Joy epinb
‘wewasjels Absjens e se ABajens uojjedIuNLWWoOD
‘sleob psjels yum uoday pue bunsyew e sjealn
AsAaoasiq

Ul paysiigelss sjeob Bunasiew
pue ssauIsNq Uo paseyg
Abarens

sss00.4d AIsA0DSI( JO SYNsal
uo paseq ‘ado2s j03foid Buluiews) dojeasg

JIPNe SuoiEIUNWWOY)

1IpNE SUOKEDILINWIWOD

ur asn 10y sjasse bunsixa Jo A|quiassy

1IPNE UONE3IUNWWOD Ul 9SN pue

1o08foud ur uonesBatuy 105 opinb ojA)s aanboy
Bulinpayas Bunsaw Ajysapp
Buiuuoisuie.q pue Bumas jeog
s|eof
suonedIuNwWwWos pue Bupayew
JO UoNBIUSWINJOP PUB UORIULS(]

s{eob ssauisnqg
40 UOREUSWNI0pP PUE UDILYSQ
:Buimoloy ay; ysidwoooe
01 (papasu se) Ajpjeledas pue A|sAnos||0D
sispjoyaels Jje yium (s)bunsswi sjeppoe
00°629'G$ Sy ABaieng yeiq » Aisnoasiq

sa[qesanljag  (siejjop) 193png  (sunoy) jagpng yse] qng ¥se| f108338 op

139013 HLIM LSITNSYL 0T




sasodind oyioads QgL [ei81e[|02AUSuU0D JByl0
10} sabessaw oyoads
10|d 03 sulbaq puz jaylabo)
31 sjusw.a|s ayj ||e
MOy Joj AIDJS Y] S18A00
1BU] Yeup Juswroop |eiiu)
(luensjal se) sway Ajjeoadsg
SUIRNQ WSU0Y SUSAINA
(s)ainyooug
uofjeluasald
‘Siuswgls pedoos
AAoadsal 0} olI0ads JUSUOD YeIp ‘SABLIBU
Elaw au} ul padojanap suaws|s ay} Buisn
00'05.'c$ o€ (xew suonessy z) Bunyerg
® uolejdwoy Aoig
uoday £HES 10} BANELEU BJAW 3L} Bunyeip uibag
Kianoosiq oy} §c Led e se
pspnjoul - sjusws|g AU01g
|eni) pue ‘suonisodolyg
Buijeg anbiun
‘si010e 4 BuysinBuysig
‘sluawae)s Hujuonisoy
8y} ssulep JeY) aAReLEN
EIS 3yl 40 LEIp |enu|
sjuawel3 A40lg |B1ONID
suoysadoud Buyjag anbiun
sJojoe Buysinbunsiq
sjuswale)s Buluonisod
‘EHES 104
Buimojio) syl sulwislep ‘AiaAoasig uo paseq
SABJLIEN EIBIN

soigesenljaq  (sreljop) 1aBpng  (sinoy) JaBpng SfseL qng ¥se] Kuo3ajeq o

139008 HLIM LSITASYLTT




30EQP39] U0 peseq salepdn

(iuiodiamod 1o 10ukay)

weiboud pasnsap u) pajesso ubisep |In4

MSIAS. JOJ YRID [BnIu|

sjuaws|a

PSIBID0SSE PUE JUSIUCD 10} SUIING |elju)

00°0S/'cS 01 uBiseq uonejussaly

(edoos
panunuod) uoiejuawsaiduwy
Joj asuepinb se
[IeMm se 'ssaooud A1sAoosiq
sui Buunp paysigelse
ABajesss pue sjeob
10 uoneuswse|dur 1o}
psemuio) yied e sepiaoud
18y} JUSWNJ0P |2aNdR |

uoisiaA [eul Jo AlaalaQ

UONEJall PUB MBIASI [BUIA)L|

ArsnoosI(g

ul padojaaap ABajens uo paseq ‘Yelp jeniy;

00529's$ G uogedwo)
uBE|d suonResIunwwo’)

ssoeid
|BJa]E|[03 jo uonesd
Ul pesn aq 0} JuslUOD
pazijeuy jo AisAlaq
uolsiaA Jeul jo Aisnllsg
UOHEJS)l PUB MBIAS) [BLIS)L|
yelp Adod [e1aie)j00 |leniy)
BunumAdo) |eiaie| 0D
a}Isgam Jo uoljeala
Ul pasn ag 0} JUSIUoI
pazijeuy jo Ausnisqg
UoISIan [euy Jo Aisaljleqg
LoNEISY PUB MBIASI |BLIBIL|
yelp Adoa aysgam |eiiu|
BunumAdos susgapp
00°005'2$ 09 BunumAdog

sa|qesanljag  (sseqop) JaSpng  (unoy) yadpng syse) qng %se) An3ajeq jopm

139008 H1IM ISITHSYL ZT




00°005°¢$ 8¢
00°629°G$ Gy
00'062°1$ 0t

suoelall Z xep

Buuiopio pue Alaaiap jeuly
soeqpasy uo paseq sajepdn
M3IAS] 10} Yelp |eniu)

sjuswale
P3JEID0SSE pUE JUSIUOD IO} BUIRINO [BINIU|

sucnesayl z xey

Buuspio pue fusAlap jeury
¥oeqpas) uo paseq sajepdn
M3IA8J Yelp [eniu|

wsyl 1ad suondo
ubisap ¢ o) dn yum ‘swsyl 1oy Yeip [eru)

(ued suopesIUNWLWOD puUE Yoledsas uo paseq
{UIPNOH LWOJ} SUOIIEPUSWWOIa] [BUOljippE
BWOS Yypm) pajeaus ag 0} swiall Jo uoniuyaq

suonesayl Z xepw

Buuepio pue Asanlsp eul
3oeqpas) uo paseq sajepdn
M3IABI 1O} Yelp |emy|

sjuawaje
P3JeI00SSE pue JUSIUOD J0) SUINO [BIHU|

ubisag
jolydwed y sainyooug

ubisaq swsayj Ayewnadsg

ubisa(] 1suueg

(sselfop) 1a3png  (sunoy) JaBpng

139008 HLIM LISIT0SYL ET

sysej qng yse}

ajgeJanlag




BUSgaM £YES 00°00S°2$
8y jo asesjal 2|gnd ay)
8q ||Im S|qeiaAlsp |eul

0c «suonesbeu) depy sanoeioyu|

wiojield gam eyl mainsl O} JOISSSS [BUONBONP]
uolONpPoLd 0} Juawuoliaue 6uibelg auyy ysng
uofielbajul sonkjeuy

uonezIudo PEC] pue |ZIS BUSGIAA

30EQPS3) UO paseq selepdn pue M3IAal 9)IS

00°05C°1$ (o] soueldwos yqy
uonezjwndo 038
dmjas (s)sbedgng
dnyss sbed awop
(Atanoosiqg Buunp
psuysp a9 o} deuw ays jerioe) uoneslo sabey
uonenbyuod pue uoielbaul wibnig
dn j9s swsyy
juswuodiaug Buibeis ayy dn jeg
dn 385 Bunsoy
uuopeld sjsgem jo uoluyaq
UONEIOGE||0D PUB LUONKESID SUIINO JUSJUOD
000SZ'L1$ 06 yuswdojeaaq a)sasp
sajqesanjaq  (sszqjop) jo3png  (ssnoy) ja3png syse] qng yse) Ain3ae] Hop

133004 HLIM LSITASYL %1




‘(yauen|sod o} soualgyal
ul S| LWyl sul| sIy)) spsgem
d|gejieae Ajpiignd sy

Jo yoddns pue ssjepdn

Juswebeuew emaual Busoy

uons|dwoo pue
SNIE}S UO[1081I00 aNnss| Joj podas jo AsAlleg

Suiaouooysanssi Aue Joj Lodal Jo AisAlleqg

00°05/'c$ 0e MBIAB) BlISTaM puUE UI-4oayo APoapa
@oueUSUIBI SHSTSAA
00°09¢c$ (Aeak) Bunson
‘a)sgeam uononpo.d uo Bunsal pus o} pua Ny
a|qissaooe Apignd
Buuonaury Ajry ey
eq [lIm S|geisAlep Jeuld
Buibeis uo Bunss) pus o} pus ‘Jny
1uswWdo|aAap pue JUSIuoD Llim
psieloosse sanss ||e sBeuew pue Juswnsoq
@31} anss|
S| ) 8Insua pue A2BINJSE 10} S)ISqaMm MaIADY
Aoeinooe pue
AousysIsuod Joj suBisap pue JUSILOD MaIASY
00°005'Z$ 114 Bunsal 2 vO
3oeqpas) uo paseq salepdn pue mairas ubisag
‘BlsgQam cHES 00'GB'L$ Sl =Ubi1sag dey aanoeliou)
ay} Jo aseajai o)qnd sy
84 |lim 3|qeIsAlep jeuly
uoneibayul Ausjeb ospip
Bunsoy pue uone|idwod abew
uoneifajuy sujENo UL
00°052'9% 0S ubisa sUsgepA
sajqesamjaq  (ssejjop) 1adpng  (sunoy) ja3png SYse] qng §se| Kindajeq spuopm

139004 HLIM 1S )SYL 6T




00°SEL'69$ Sysuaise Suipnjaur Jou jejo)
00°582'688 065 101 ONVYD
sisanbau
pUE SUOISSNOSIp UO paseq
adoas ay) 0} suohppe
ale swa) asay] .,
000S2'.$ 85 'sauobe1es Jayo su) ul pajeso)e sebpnqg uoneoo|Ny Areuonaiosig
au) puoAaq puaixs ey} sysanbai |euonippe Aue
sjepowwadoe o} 196pnq e s| Aobisies siyy
agl aal ‘CYES PUB SANIOEISIU| [UIPNOH USaMIg Juswabeuep
uodn paasbe asimisylo ssajUN 1Y/5ZL S pue ubisaq [euCiIPPY
JE 1IN0 Payjig 3Q [|IM ¥}0oMm Jo adoas ay] apIsInNo
uswebeuew pue ubisep [euonippe Auy
adgl asit (z sseyd) sdeig
8N @ Buuue|d wwod.iep
00°GLL'G1$ - UMO | «xUONINPOIH 03pIA
Aojoe 4 Aq pepincid sajewnss Yo paseq o9pia
8|buis e o) sbeleae payndwon e si 1509 sy
"SpIB0QAIO]S |BUY S} PUE SOSPIA JO JSquIny
uo peseq abueys 0} 13lgns sisCo O9pIA
Juswabeuew 1a6png 108(oud ayy
pue ysej ybnouy) poddns 40 uonenp au} 10} 10BIUOI jO Juicd paledIPa(]
pUE UolEJUBLLNDOP
wioy} SpIse ajqesaAljap
anbjun e aaey jou
saop uswoabeuey 1oslolg
jyBisiano (euonessdg
juswoebeuew 186png
som Buiwosdn
pue ssaiboid mainal 01 sbunasw Apaspp
sauyswi sbeuepy
5151] yse) abeuew pue mairay
00°05.'8¢ 0. swabeuepy pafolg
sajqesantjaq  (sJejjop) 138png  (sunoy) ja3png Syse] qng wse| Ai0dajeq yiom

139014 HilM 1S HSYL 9T




agueuayule 3 Bu)soy
Surueyy wopeyuawayd)
3unsaj 13 / v
ueldwo) yay
nawdojaAsg puajuesy
udisaq ajisqap-
ugisa) Semg
ugisaq s|eUBEW Junig
usisa() uone)uasaly
usisaq] Jauueg
auiping juajung
BunumAdos je1aie)jo)
AunumAdog ausqam
3AJELIEN RIS
Bupjeiq 3 uonepduog Aing
A3ae)s
waudseueyy 193lolg

fuBnozsig / owory

ae/iL- 8yl SHA- LWL 80/LL-¢0/LL  10/1L-82/0L  SZ/OL-1Z/0L  BLOL-¥L/OL  LL/DL-L0/0L  +0/0L-0E/60  [Z/60 - £2/60 610¢/02/60

INNINIL 133004d 02




sda)g 1xay 1§ el wiuoepy
aaueua)uiEy '3 Sunsoy
Auileiq uorjeuRLwW|
Bunsa) 25Ty / ¥0
aauelidwog ygy
wauwdojanag puayosy
ugisag aysqam
ugisagg Semg
usisaq] Sjepatep| g
3|53 UDNeWAsal
udisaq 1ouuzg
aljjing jueje]
Bunumido) feiaefiod
Bunumadog apsqap
BARELIRN BB
Bungesq 3 uonepdwon Lng
Baens
Juawageueyy joaiodg

K12n005}(] / yoory

Y2/l0-08/10  (WIO-EUID  OL/ID-90/10 0Z/0/10 Y3IM SEURSLIND  0Z/ZL-9LZL  EWZL-60/ZL  90/TL-20/ZL  6Z/LL-SZ/LL
- 0zieL

INITINIL 133C08d T°C




INIANOH o Auadoud |enyoa)ayu; 341 ase |esodoud sig wiyum pajussaidas
dse3eyy seap! (e pue Auy “joaen Jo Bujsuas)| ‘aiempaey 10} 53503 SPN[oul 10U Op S3}eLIISS BY| “SUOREIASUOWSP LSNP pue ojjojuod
syt i p3foud siy3 asn 03 yBu By) uIela! | [NIANOH 3503 syt A[Srewn pue suljawi au 18yE PINo3 yaiym ‘padoasas ag o1 pasu
Kew saBuzyd Auy (yQd sureld 1s9pA B8) SHES PUe INJQNOH u@3Mmiaq suoissnosip uo paseq st 39(cud siyy 4o 3503 pue Buiwi ay|,

wo3 bun)nsuoaainyuaspueiguebesw
40333 3u33u0] / 113YYYY NYIVIN

oIpms juipnoy@Auo)
10333110 131UY33} / [INDI ANOL

oipn}siuipnoyiiew
10j33.1q aAneal3 / 301904 LIYN

oipmsiuipnoyuuad
10333110 Buibeueyy 7 33INMONE NNId
-NY31 4N0A




€220 08¢ ¢0S | HMOTAIOIR)E U
NMOL AHO1DVA

Vdd SNIV1d LS3IM :TVSOdOYyd 13DAnd



CF

N0A WGL DUUEDY ) DEMIDE Y30 S/ L

1094 40, nof Masu |

CHOYLCT 10 L) 210 PLE 108100 18U 398 2] SUSO2M JNS US A 2583 o

[10s-Q J4i2b 2m
nbaEgns e Uhadued o

Jo/e |C 23005 21 S

uoninpsid-ald S5 se pan
STAVIA S[FNICRY C2NIA S 301p0d 0]

DORIT 3G

o=

NOA WY
ZUd 102 L

Ll 3ABL D BINIEUS 0L
pspezl Jl SI2A0 ¢
SN UOLDMPoIH IS0 18
34l uc Suuby puE npne Auyasibeanis
s swesisse fuediowsd buinpeyos pue 3

il

RSyl

noog ESDETNEEE
122000 51208 Bui 228 NTATUDS G IWDN0OKH UL A B aaioam — sl dopzasg

0 SIDNRUISIY L HPS [BU 3UI O 10R0U0D WO I PHAIC

CWER UNO

12U 30E FiEal neA 1o e

SULNSLS PUE ‘1048 192090 2y Joy 2w Buney siuedioipad 5 Wl ay Sunonys
il 10 oml Ajlesp) b 2 pue B pui Aep £ oL

LB INCGE SIS Qi W SUJ I0GHS 030A 122104 2 0] 1aD0org 2y; osugng

R 0 2seyd
20 sCuane weom 2y er

2L Buag uenonpo i 0apia o) |PSOAG A S 1uans ona
DNOH 18 /4200 DIIUSIE) 34} 134 DRICUOY SIS aah




SBWNST (210

:uononpoJsd 3sod

100yUs w4

dHISZLS SINOH Xep SINoH uip uononpoudaid

o3qain

61060 ¥Ad SNIVd 1S3M :TvSOd0odd L3Dang




ATTACHMENT B
(Board Action on Houdini Contract)

Resolution 2020-01: Page 4 of 6



[3

o

~WEST PLAINS/AIRPORT AREA PDA

Action item No: 091919-05 Board Meeting Date September 19, 2019

Subject: Approval of Contract with Houdini Interactive for Marketing Collateral
Services

Background:

The West Plains Airport Area Public Development Authority (PDA) has recently completed a naming
and logo development process and desires to contract for marketing services to assist in developing
a targeted marketing campaign in the advanced manufacturing and aerospace industries. The PDA
intends to roll out the new name and logo through a strategic marketing campaign in the coming
months.

The PDA issued a request for proposals and received five submittals. We have reviewed the
submittals and interviewed three firms. The PDA staff is recommending Houdini Interactive as the
firm to provide Marketing Collateral Services.

Deliverables from this contract will include:

Preliminary strategic marketing plan

A world class interactive website

A presentation deck for speaking at industry meetings and conferences
An introductory brochure on the PDA

Specialty item designs for hats, shirts, golf balls, glasses, etc.

A banner for trade shows and local events

The contract schedule is anticipated to take approximately 90 days and not to exceed $89,285.00

Recommendation:

Recommendation is for the West Plains/Airport Area PDA board to authorize the Executive Director
to execute a contract with Houdini Interactive in the amount not to exceed $89,285.00

Submitted By:

Todd M Coleman, Executive Director

Date Action Taken: QZ@L‘?_

Motion Byz‘ﬂLﬂAM o Sprdew

Seconded By@ﬂm
Action Token:. gpproved) ise]ec’red) (Deferred to: )

Approved as modified:




ATTACHMENT C
(March 18, 2020 Email Request for Release of Contract Contingency)

Resolution 2020-01: Page 5 of 6



50 DicyAopvasy—~

Sueann Herkel

From: Todd Coleman

Sent: Monday, March 23, 2020 1:19 PM

To: Penn Brownlee

Cc: Sueann Herkel; Matt Bogue; Tony Conti; Bill Powers
Subject: RE: Discretionary Fund

Approved.

Sueann, please document the approval in the contract file. Thanks

7\ S 3R 3

‘l.l CO0L v

Todd Coleman
Executive Director

P: 509-607-6556
todd@s3r3solutions.com

www.s3rdsolutions.com

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed and may
contain confidential and privileged information that must not be divulged pursuant to applicoble laws. If this e-mail is not addressed to you, you are hereby odvised
that any review, use, dissemination, distribution, or copying of the e-mail is strictly prohibited. Please notify the sender immediately by return e-mail and delete all
copies from your system.

From: Penn Brownlee <penn@houdini.studio>

Sent: Thursday, March 19, 2020 10:31 AM

To: Todd Coleman <tcoleman@WestPlainsPDA.com>

Cc: Sueann Herkel <sherkel@WestPlainsPDA.com>; Matt Bogue <matt@houdini.studio>; Tony Conti
<tony@houdini.studio>; Bill Powers <bill@houdini.studio>

Subject: Re: Discretionary Fund

Hey Todd!

Not a problem. Please find a table below that outlines the item, the hours and the cost associated.

' DGO AR ESTIMATED HOURS $125/HR RATE

Projects page/section and templatization 5 $625.00

Data center speciﬁ@u{éj) 5 $625.00
Data center addition to the booklet 2 $250.00
QR code landing page 5 $625.00 el

Brochure request email update 4 $500.00 | eh or hro chure
Merchandise items 4 $500.00
Interactive brochure on the site 5 $625.00
Foam boards 4 $500.00
QA & Testing 2 $250.00



Project Management 4 $500.00

TOTAL: $5,000.00

Here are the details per bullet for consideration as well:

Projects page/section and templatization - Creation and implementation of a Projects section on the website and the
templatization of the section and form for admin submission.

Data center specific brochure - Creation of a brochure specific to data centers to include the following: a seismicity map,
information on sources of energy, information on renewable energy, Spokane is number 8 in areas for lowest disasters, as well
as further details to be provided by S3R3 Solutions.

Data center addition to the booklet - Addition of the data center content into the booklet.
QR code landing page - Creation of a landing page specific to the scanning of a QR code. This page will be a part of the

website, but not accessible through internal links or the navigation - only by scanning the QR code. This page will include
some informational content, as well as the lead generation form that sends the user the brochure.

Brochure request email update - Updating of the lead generation form email to include a canned email body and the brochure
as an attachment instead of a download link.

Merchandise items - Designing and ordering of the additional specialty items: long sleeve shirts, portfolio, window clings, and
any additional items that fit into the available budget.

interactive brochure on the site - Implementation of a page-turning tool into the website for the booklet and/or brochure to give
the sense of the pages actually turning.

Foam boards - Designing and ordering of foam boards with the difference between S3R3 and the WPAAPDA, the core values
and the value prop.

Project management - General management of the project and meetings
QA & Testing - testing of the website updates.

Thank you!

ww

PENN BROWNLEE

Managing Director / Co-Founder

C: 509 230.4166

0O: 509.255.3787
penn@houdini.sludio
www.houdini.studio

On Wed

Thanks

, Mar 18, 2020 at 6:23 PM Todd Coleman <tcoleman@westplainspda.com> wrote:

Penn.

I will speak with Sueann about it tomorrow to make sure we are on the same page. Do you have a detailed breakdown
or did you do it on scratch paper? We will need detail, hours and cost by bullet point for us to put into an addendum to
the contract. Since we identified the discretionary fund we only need to note it to the contract not do a formal change

order.

Thanks



Todd Coleman

Executive Director

P: 509-607-6656

todd@s3r3solutions.com

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed and may
contain confidential and privileged information that must not be divulged pursuant to applicable laws. If this e-mail is not addressed to you, you are hereby advised
that any review, use, dissemihation, distribution, or copying of the e-mail is strictly prohibited. Please notify the sender immediately by return e-mail and delete all
copies from your system.

From: Penn Brownlee <penn@houdini.studio>

Sent: Wednesday, March 18, 2020 3:54 PM

To: Todd Coleman <tcoleman@WestPlainsPDA.com>; Sueann Herkel <sherkel@WestPlainsPDA.com>
Cc: Matt Bogue <matt@houdini.studio>; Tony Conti <tony@houdini.studio>

Subject: Discretionary Fund

Hey Todd!

Per our discussion about a week ago, with the requested additions of work we are anticipating a need for 40 hours
($5,000.00) to be pulled from the discretionary fund. The additions include the following:

» Projects page/section and templatization
¢ Call center specific brochure

e Call center addition to the booklet

* QR code landing page

e Brochure request email update

e Merchandise items

e Interactive brochure on the site

e Foam boards

If there are any additions desired to these, please let us know and we can account for them.
3



Thank you!

wv

PENN BROWNLEE

Managing Director / Co-Founder

C: 509.230.4166
O: 509 255.3787
penn@houdini.studio

www _houdini studio



ATTACHMENT D
(June 15, 2020 Email Request for Release of Contract Contingency)

Resolution 2020-01: Page 6 of 6



¥ 922c0

Sueann Herkel D&de'w‘l@’ﬁC
From: Penn Brownlee <penn@houdini.studio>

Sent: Monday, June 15, 2020 12:34 PM

To: Sueann Herkel

Cc: Bill Powers

Subject: Re: Release of Discretionary Funds

Perfect, thank you Sueann!

4

PENN BROWNLEE

Managing Director / Co-Founder

C: 509.230.4166

O: 509.255.3787
pean@houdini studio
www. houdini.studio

On Mon, Jun 15, 2020 at 12:33 PM Sueann Herkel <sueann@s3r3solutions.com> wrote:

Hi Penn and Bill,

Since the discretionary funds are not designated to particular job tasks in the contract, you don’t need to distinguish
how the dollars spent as long as they are spent for website development, project management and website
maintenance.

I hope this helps,

Sueann

-NSBRB

Sueann Herkel

Executive Assistant

P:. 509-381-4152



sueann@s3r3solutions.com

www_s3r3solutions.com

From: Penn Brownlee <penn@houdini.studio>
Sent: Monday, June 15, 2020 11:35 AM

To: Sueann Herkel <sueann@s3r3solutions.com>
Cc: Bill Powers <bill@houdini.studio>

Subject: Re: Release of Discretionary Funds

Good morning, Sueann!

Fantastic news, thank you! Does the release need to be date specific in our hourly reports, or does it just fall within the
month?

Thank you!

fod

PENN BROWNLEE

Managing Director / Co-Founder

C: 509.230.4166
0: 509.255.3787

ponn@noudinl.studio

www houdini.studio

On Mon, Jun 15, 2020 at 11:11 AM Sueann Herkel <sueann@s3r3solutions.com> wrote:

Good Morning Gentlemen!

I wanted to let you know that the remaining $2250 of discretionary funds has been released for website development,
project management and website maintenance.



Thank you and please let me know if you have any questions,

Sueann

-.7:/_\*,8898

Sueann Herkel

Executive Assistant

P: 509-381-4152

sueann@s3r3solutions.com

www s3r3solutions.com



Sueann Herkel

From: Todd Coleman

Sent: Monday, June 15, 2020 11:02 AM

To: Sueann Herkel

Subject: RE: Releasing Remaining Discretionary Funds for Houdini
That is fine,

S 3R 3

8 O LU 1T 1 ONTGS

Todd Coleman
Executive Director

P: 509-607-6556
todd@s3r3solutions.com
s3r3solutions. com

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed and may
contain confidential and privileged information that must not be divuiged pursuant to applicoble lows. If this e-mail is not addressed to you, you are hereby odvised
that any review, use, dissemination, distribution, or copying of the e-mail is strictly prohibited. Please notify the sender immediately by return e-mail and delete all
copies from your system.

From: Sueann Herkel <sueann@s3r3solutions.com>

Sent: Wednesday, June 10, 2020 3:58 PM

To: Todd Coleman <todd@s3r3solutions.com>

Subject: Releasing Remaining Discretionary Funds for Houdini

Todd,

Houdini has requested that the remaining discretionary funds to continue work on our behalf as in accordance with their
current contract.

It is anticipated by Houdini staff that the remaining dollars of $2250 would be used to continue website development,
project management and website maintenance.

Thank you,
Sueann

75 S9R3

Sueann Herkel
Executive Assistant

P: 509-381-4152
sueann@s3r3solutions.com
www.s3r3solutions.com



